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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

ORIGINAL APPEARANCE

The El Paso and Southwestern Depot at Tucson, Arizona was built in
1912 at a cost of $45,000.

The depot (106' x 57') is of classical design with porticos (45' x
57') on either end. All rooms in the depot open into a central
rotunda covered by a stained glass dome with a protective skylight.
The two main entries are flanked by four large columns of Indiana
limestone. Similar smaller columns continue around the portico.
Openings behind the entry columns are arcuated with terra-cotta
trim. Openings to either side of the rectilinear main entry are
also trimmed with terra-cotta trim and are presently being enclosed.
The exterior is brick with a classical facade of terra-cotta tile.
The flat portico roofs and deck roof areas surrounding the skylight
are composition roll-roofing on wood deck. The pitched roof center
section is covered with red Mexican channel tile. The porticos
which flank the main center section of the depot are open on three
sides and were used as baggage processing areas. Floors are of
poured concrete and the roof structural members and soffit were
stuccoed to resemble concrete.

Interior walls are generally brick and have been plastered in the
public areas of the building. Trim and accent materials are wood ,
terra-cotta, limestone, and plaster. These materials become more
extensively and ornately employed as the building spaces become
more public. Floors throughout the building are of poured concrete.

The white plaster used to form the dome and cover the structural
brick of the walls is contrasted with dark doors and window trim.
The height and visual impact of the stained glass dome creates a
striking interior space which is one of the stronger attributes
,of the building.

PRESENT PHYSICAL CONDITION

The depot has deteriorated but the building is basically sound.
Roof leaks have damaged some of the interiors.

To the east,adjacent to the depot is a park which was developed to separate the
depot from the freight office. The freight office,which later was used as a
hospital, is being demolished (August 1979). The park and surrounding grounds
were originally well landscaped and maintained,and contained a variety of unusual
plant Tife. There is a fountain in the center of the park which was a converging
focus and hub for six concrete footpaths integrating the depot and freight build-
ings and providing a pleasant entry sequence from or to the city. The future of
the park is uncertain, but a small portion of it may be utilized with the depot,
which is going to be converted to a restaurant and several offices.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

That certain parcel of land situate in the City of Tucson, County of Pima, State
of Arizona, being that portion of Lot 2, Block 221, CITY OF TUCSON, according to
Book 3 of Maps, page 70, Records of Pima County, Arizona; that portion of the
Northeast quarter of Section 14, Township 14 South, Range 13 East of the Gila
and Salt River Base and Meridian, and that portion of abandoned Mission Street
as abandoned by Mayor and Council and as set forth in instrument recorded in
Book 52 of Deeds, page 193, records of said County, described as follows:

COMMENCING at the survey monument at the centerline intersection of Congress Street
and Granada Avenue as established by Pueblo Center recorded in Book 20 of Maps,
page 83, records of Pima County, Arizona; thence South 81°942'18" West (South
81941'41" West record) along the centerline of Congress Street, a distance of
765.92 feet; thence South 08°917'42" East, 40.00 feet to the South right of way
line of Congress Street; thence along said South right of way 1line of Congress
Street, North 81042'18" East, 258.32 feet; thence South 08°21'02" East, 70.2
feet; thence South 18°35'42" East, 102.5 feet; thence South 71°24'18" West, 46.27
feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING of the parcel of land to be described; thence
South 18035'42" East, 217.67 feet; thence South 71924'18" West, 173.12 feet to a
point distant North 74055'29" East 31.00 feet, measured radially, from the located
centerline of main track (now removed) formerly of the E1 Paso and Southwestern
Railroad Company (now Southern Pacific Transportation Company); thence North-
westerly concentric with and distant 31.00 feet Northeasterly, measured radially,
from said located centerline along a curve concave to the Southwest having a
radius of 1940.91 feet and central angle of 6925'45" (tangent to said curve at
last mentioned point bears North 15°04'31" West) an arc distance of 217.79 feet
to a point distant Southeasterly 219.14 feet, measured along the Northwesterly
continuation of last described curve, from said South right of way line of
Congress Street; thence North 71924'18" East, 171.96 feet to the TRUE POINT OF
BEGINMING, containing an area of 0.852 of an acre, more or less.
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Harv Bamsechen, Bill Dunaway, Ben Smith, "Preservation Analysis - E1
Paso and Southwestern Railway Depot", Tucson, 1975 (xeroxed) University
of Arizona, School of Architecture, Tucson, Arizona.

Statements by Walter Douglas, Jr., Son of Phelps-Dodge director,
Walter Douglas, in a personal interview, Tucson, Arizona, May 5, 1975.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The E1l Paso and Southwestern Railroad was built by the Phelps Dodge
Company to serve its copper interest in Bisbee and Douglas in south-
eastern Arizona. The first section of track was laid in 1893 between
Bisbee and the Santa Fe railroad at Fairbank. The railroad grew as
Phelps Dodge become embroiled in controversy with the Santa Fe and
Southern Pacific Railrgads over freight rates and accessibility of
rail service. Eventually the railroad extended 1200 miles from Dawson,
in northern New Mexico, to El1 Paso and finally on November 20, 1912 to
Tucson. The company took options on right-of-ways through Phoenix on
to Los Angeles and planned to compete with the Southern Pacific. How-
ever, twelve years later the railroad was sold to the Southern Pacific.
The depot in Tucson was closed shortly after the sale in 1924 and trains
routed through the existing Southern Pacific terminal about a mile and
a half east of the El Paso and Southwestern Depot.

The depot is significant architecturally because of its opulent classical
palladian design which was unusual for railroad station design in the
Southwest. The symmetry of the design and use of imported as well as
native materials give the building a style and grace not found in many

of the new surrounding buildings. The design of the depot was influenced
and implemented by the wife of Walter Douglas, builder of the railroad.

The depot can be viewed as a symbol of the great wealth generated by
‘the copper industry and the effect this wealth had on the city of
Tucson and the State of Arizona. It is a symbol of the courage of the
Phelps Dodge Company and the pioneer spirit of the people of Arizona
that when an existing transportation system did not and would not pro-
vide the necessary service that they struck out on their own and built
a new and independent railroad, a railroad built without loans or
bonds, a railroad built with cash. Because of this venture, life in
southeastern Arizona was made easier for many and was an important
factor in the developing economy of a new state.
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STATE CODE COUNTY CODE
-None-
STATE CODE COUNTY CODE
fElFORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE

Allan J. Norville, General Partner

ORGANIZATION DATE

Bl Centro Enterprises, Ltd. II August 29, 1979
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE

400 West Congress (602) 882-4200
CITY OR TOWN STATE

Tucson Tucson 85701

mSTATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION

THE EVALUATED SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE STATE IS:
NATIONAL X, STATE___ LOCAL

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-665). |
hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the
criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER SIGNATURE

TITLE DATE

GPC 521-803
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[y PHOTO REFERENCE
DATE OF PHOTO May 1975

pnotocneorr  Phillip J. E.mnd.n
Tucson Heritage Foundation / John C. mﬁmasﬁmocmm
NEGATIVE FILEC Civic Plaza )
Tucson, Arizona

¥/i] IDENTIFICATION
PHOTO NO

DESCRIBE VIEW, DIRECTION, ETC IF DISTRICT. GIVE m_..:_.c_zmz_}?_..m? wqum.—

View of depot from the track side (West) showing
rth sides with park behind the depot 4
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.H_cnmoz _. Pima Arizona
PHOTO REFERENCE

protocreolr - Phillip J. Black DATE OF PHOTO May 1975
Tucson Heritage Foundation / John C. Fremont House

NEGATIVE FILED AT Civic Plaza
Tucson, Arizona

Ul IDENTIFICATION

DESCRIBE VIEW. DIRECTION, ETC IF DISTRICT. GIVE BUILDING NAME & STREET PHOTO NO

View of landscaping and portion of fountain on south side of depot with
south and east facades of depot
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NEGATIVE FILED AT H.C.Omo.nw ..I.@H.H.ﬁmwm
con, Arizona
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South eleveation of depot
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showing small garden with




T

-_

*_.m:_ __.___

,__.._ ._C_

LI

___.__::;_

L *9pPTS >oBI} WOIJ
ON 010Hd

133uLS w3

WYN DNIOTING 3AID

SuEIIUD UTEW SuTmoyus 30dop JO UOTIBASTS 3som
12101510 41013 ‘NOILDIBIO MIIA F61u053d

noiLvoLaLNaal i

70 TTEIRq

A s ey

9snoj JuUcuLII ‘D
¢ /6T KB 010Hd 4034v0

ujor

’

/ UOTATPUNOL

TUOZTIY U0SON,

BZRTd OTATD  1v oIl JALLVDIN

283 Ta9]] uosony,

soeTgd ‘L dTTTTUJ 11030 010K
FANTUTITY OLOHd

R

il



El Paso and Southwestern Railroad Depot and Park

AND/OR COMMON

LOCATION

CITY. TOWN — _VICINITY OF COUNTY STATE
Tucson Pima Arizona
PHOTOREFERENCE -

puotocreoir  Phillip J. Black oate of proTo May 1975

Tucson Heritase Foundation / John C. Fremont House

NEGATIVE FILED AT (0iaic Plaza -
Tucson, Arizona

IDENTIFICATION
DESCRISE VIEW. DIRECTION, ETC. If DISTRICT. GIVE BUILDING NAME & STREET PHOTO NO
View of El Paso and Southwestern Railroad Park with cityscape 8

behind looking from the northwest corner of the depot with the
foutain shown in lower middle of photograph.




LOCATICN

CiTY. TOWN __VICINITY OF COUNTY STATE

Tucson Pima Arizona
£53] PHOTO REFERENCE

puotocreoir Phillip J. Black oate oF proto May 1975

Tucson Heritage Foundation / John C. Fremont House
NEGATIVE FILED AT Ci‘fi P].a?;‘l
Tucson, Arizona

IDENTIFICATION

DESCRIBE VIEW. DIRECTION, ETC IF DISTRICT. GIVE BUILDING NAME & STREET PHOTO NO
View of park and fountain looking east. Q




{ LOCATION

CITY, TOWN —MICINITY OF STATE COUNTY
Tucson Arizona Pima

PHOTO REFERENCE .
PHOTO CREDIT Phillip J BlaCk OATE OF PHOTO Nay 19 75

Lol - de 3 T
ecatvesiipar Lucson Heritage Foundation/John C. Fremont House

ivic Plgza “

Tuccson., Arizona 85701
IDENTIFICATION
DESCRIBE VIEW, DIRECTION, ETC IF DISTRICT, GIVE BUILDING NAME & STREET PHOTO NO. 10

View of park with depot behind foliage. ZLocking southwest at

corner of Granada Avenue and Congress Street. o ez
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